Minutes



Meeting name	Cabinet
Date	Wednesday, 13 September 2023
Start time	4.30 pm
Venue	Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire. LE13 1GH

Present:

Chair	Councillor P. Allnatt (Chair)	
Councillors	M. Glancy (Vice-Chair) S. Cox	S. Butcher P. Cumbers
In Attendance	Councillor M. Brown Councillor M. Graham Councillor A. Thwaites	
Officers	Chief Executive Director for Housing and Communities (Deputy Chief Executive) Director for Growth and Regeneration Assistant Director for Resources Assistant Director for Planning Interim Monitoring Officer Democratic Services Officer (CB)	

Minute No.	Minute
24	Apologies for Absence
	No apologies were received for this meeting.
25	Minutes
	The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 August 2023 were confirmed.
26	Declarations of Interest
	There were no declarations of interest.
27	Matters referred from Scrutiny Committee in accordance with Scrutiny Procedure Rules
	No items had been referred from Scrutiny Committee in accordance with the
	Scrutiny Procedure Rules.
28	Planning Enforcement Policy
	This item was deferred.
29	Quarter 1 Housing Revenue Account Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring
	Report 2023/24 The Portfolio holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources introduced the
	report the purpose of which was to provide information on actual expenditure and
	income incurred on the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) compared to the latest
	approved budget for the period 1 April 2023 – 30 June 2023 for revenue and capital budgets.
	The Portfolio holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources advised that
	this was the first report of this financial year on the HRA, the main area of concern
	are rent arrears which need to be addressed and resources made available to
	ensure rents are paid. Cabinet and Scrutiny will be keeping an eye on this.
	A comment was made that it was good to see an underspend in the repairs budget
	due to costs being lower than budgeted, rather than budgeted repairs not being
	done.
	Cabinet:
	 NOTED the financial position on the HRA at 30 June 2023 and the year-end forecast for both revenue and capital.
	2) APPROVED the increase to the overall value of the HRA capital programme
	to include £118k for the estimated expenditure on 3 fire damaged properties
	to be funded from insurance and a virement from another capital programme
	item.

Reasons for Recommendations:

The Council, having set an agreed budget at the start of the financial year, needs to ensure that the delivery of the budget is achieved. Consequently, there is a requirement to regularly monitor progress so that corrective action can be taken when required, which is enhanced with the regular reporting of the financial position.

During this and the previous year the housing stock has been affected by a number of fires in its properties, which require capital works to remedy. The works to the properties are covered by insurance, less a £5k excess per property claim. The increase of £118k will be covered by the insurers to the value of £109k.

30 Quarter 1 General Fund Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Report 2023/24

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources introduced the report, the purpose of which was to provide details of service and financial performance for the period 01 April to 30 June 2023.

The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources advised the forecast is good, however income from non-recurring grants and high interest rates are a key factor for this. Interest rates are time limited and are expected to fall again end of next year. Therefore, hard choices will need to be made to balance the budget, we will need to be committed to find savings and as a result not everything will be achievable. This administration is committed to balance the budget. The Councils future financial sustainability is a key risk that will need to be addressed.

Cabinet:

- 1) **NOTED** the year end forecast and financial position for the General Fund and Special Expenses at 30 June 2023 for both revenue and capital.
- APPROVED the increase to the General Fund IT capital programme by £47k for the estimated increased expenditure on projects, and the additional need to draw from the IT repairs and renewals fund.

Reasons for Recommendations:

The Council, having set an agreed budget at the start of the financial year, needs to ensure that the delivery of this budget is achieved. Consequently, there is a requirement to regularly monitor progress so that corrective action can be taken when required, which is enhanced with the regular reporting of the financial position.

Following the in-sourcing of ICT services, the increase in costs around firewall implementation and security concerns over authenticator apps, the IT capital programme needs increasing. The financing can be covered by the IT repairs and renewals fund.

31	Quarter 1 Treasury Management Update The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources introduced the
	report, the purpose of which was to provide a quarterly report of the Council's reporting procedures and a summary of the Treasury activities to the end of June 2023.
	The Portfolio Holder for Corporate Finance, Property and Resources was pleased to see that we are one of the Top performers in the East Midlands within the benchmarking group that tracks our returns from investments, this additional income is very welcome and helps offset inflationary pressures seen elsewhere in the budget. The higher interest rates have been locked in long term and will continue into the next financial year. Thanks were given to the financial team as our interest rates are doing very well.
	Cabinet:
	1) NOTED the Quarter 1 position on treasury activity for 2023-24.
	2) NOTED the Quarter 1 position on Prudential Indicators for 2023-24.
	Reasons for Recommendations: The Prudential Code requires the Council to monitor and report performance on Treasury Management activities at least quarterly. As a minimum full Council need to receive an annual report on the strategy and plan for the coming financial year, a mid-year review and an annual report on performance of the treasury management function. In addition, monitoring reports should be received at least quarterly alongside revenue and capital monitoring by the cabinet as the body delegated responsibility for treasury management functions. To facilitate the decision-making process and support capital investment decisions
	the Prudential Code requires the Council to agree and monitor a minimum number of prudential indicators.
32	Risk Management The Portfolio Holder for Governance, Environment and Regulatory Services introduced the report which provided an update on the risk management arrangements and outlines the current significant risks that have been captured on the recent review of the Councils strategic risk register by the Senior Leadership Team.
	The Portfolio Holder for Governance, Environment and Regulatory Services explained that risk management is the term of reference for Audit and Standards, and it is important that Cabinet have an oversight and awareness of the strategic risks.
	These are not new risks but have been inherited from the previous administration, they will need to be dealt with effectively and efficiently. An emerging risk is lack of capacity to deliver services and projects this is due to lack of resources: this was

	highlighted in the recent staff survey. This will be key when Cabinet are developing the new Corporate Plan that we strike a balance between priorities and resources available to deliver them.
	She is confident that both Members and Officers are monitoring the risks the Council faces and that the Senior Leadership Team maintain oversight of the risk management arrangements in place and activities undertaken to mitigate the risks.
	Cabinet:
	NOTED the content of the report and the updated Strategic Risk Register and associated risk management action plan, as attached at Appendix A.
	Reasons for Recommendations: Whilst Risk Management forms part of Audit and Standards terms of reference it is important that Cabinet have oversight and awareness of the strategic risks that could impact on the Council, to review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks.
33	Supporting the delivery of MMDR South
	The Leader of the Council and Portfolio Holder for Housing and Landlord Services introduced the report, which set out the background to the Melton Local Plan, the key infrastructure delivery requirements to maintain an up-to-date plan and the necessity for all elements of the Melton Mowbray Distributor Road (MMDR) North, East and South to support this.
	The report also set out the detail of this Council's existing commitment to Leicestershire County Council (LCC) in respect of the MMDR South (and other infrastructure in Melton) and its importance to the relevance of the Melton Local Plan.
	The Leader of the Council started by thanking the Officers and County Hall for all the hard work that has been done to progress this issue and hopes as a result the outturn is good and can be built upon. Good progress was made in 2021 which led to an agreement with Homes England and LCC for the housing infrastructure. Inflation has though now created a significant funding gap for LCC. Melton Borough Council has always been committed to supporting LCC deliver the MMDR and the new Cabinet remains fully committed to continuing this.
	In moving the recommendation, the Leader made a number of additional points:
	 In their June letter, LCC originally requested this matter be considered by Council, but given no change in our contractual position is proposed and therefore no Council resolution required, the Council confirmed to them that it was more appropriate that Cabinet consider and respond to the matters raised, which the Leader confirmed he was happy that the Cabinet did now.
	2) Whilst the Council is happy to be as flexible as we can and look at any

options which help deliver the road, it is worth emphasising that anything MBC does in planning terms will always have to remain within the boundaries of what is possible within the relevant legislation.

- 3) On funding bids, the Council will always be happy to work with and support LCC on bids which secure additional investment into Melton, but clearly this doesn't preclude or prevent MBC from pursuing other funding bids, for any other priorities we may have, which would remain entirely a matter for ourselves.
- 4) In relation to 6.3, 2(d), it is worth highlighting that MBC recognise LCC, as the Local Education Authority, has the responsibility to provide the correct mix and number of school places to satisfy current and future education needs of a growing population. LCC are of course entitled to consider how best to meet this statutory requirement in terms of sites and locations of any schools, and MBC will always seek to support LCC as it considers its educational delivery plans, provided existing planning obligations are not prejudiced by any new arrangements.

The meeting went into exempt session at 4:50pm to enable the details with the exempt appendix to be considered and discussed.

After a private discussion the meeting resumed at 5:30pm.

Cabinet:

- 1) **CONFIRMED** Melton Borough Council remains fully committed to:
 - (i) Supporting the delivery of the Melton Mowbray Distributor Road South (MMDRS) scheme;
 - Honouring its obligations under the Staged Payment Agreement (SPA) with Leicestershire County Council dated November 2021; and
 - (iii) Discharging any other obligations arising from documents approved by Cabinet at its Meetings in September, October and December 2021.
- 2) **CONFIRMED** it remains committed to securing the delivery of the MMDRS in partnership with LCC. To that end, Cabinet:
 - (i) Noted the progress made in collaboration with LCC following receipt of their letter at Appendix A.
 - (ii) Confirmed it will explore the options and opportunities to further boost the delivery of housing and associated contributions towards the provision of road infrastructure in the short and medium term, and endorses the approach set out in paragraph 6.3 below; and,
 - (iii) Confirmed it will explore the potential to secure 3rd party funding for the road should the opportunity arise.

Reasons for Recommendations:

The MMDR schemes are essential to the delivery of the Melton Local Plan, and to the success of the town as set out in the Corporate Strategy and its Priorities. Without the Local Plan the borough would be subject to unplanned speculative development which would undermine local communities' confidence in the planning system and be likely to undermine the Council's strategy for sustainable development.

Following the May 2023 Local Elections, and recent correspondence with Leicestershire County Council (see appendix A), the Council's new administration wishes to publicly reaffirm the Council's commitment to the terms of the agreements entered into with Leicestershire County Council (LCC) in 2021.

The Council also wishes to set out the basis upon which it will continue to support LCC in delivering the MMDRS, bearing in mind constraints imposed by the legal system within which it must operate.

The meeting closed at: 5.32 pm

Chair